
Board of Directors Agenda | Wednesday, February 23, 2022 

(Times and order of agenda items are tentative and subject to change without notice) 

At Laramie County Community College (LCCC) | Concurrently by Zoom Webinar 

Location:  LCCC Clay Pathfinder (CF) Building, Room #108/109, 1400 E. College Drive, Cheyenne, 
WY  82007 

Directions:  A map of the LCCC campus is included in these materials on Page 4 

Please test your settings ahead of the webinar at https://zoom.us/test 

Join the webinar at: https://zoom.us/j/295704768 

Dress code is business attire- please wear your WBC name tag. 

 

7:15 a.m.  Breakfast for Board and Staff 

9:00 a.m. Convene Public Meeting – Co-chair Kim DeVore 

• Pledge of Allegiance (all remote participants will be muted) 
• Welcome and Roll Call of Board Members 
• ACTION ITEM: Consideration of approval of Minutes for the December 9, 2021 Regular Meeting 

by Zoom Webinar (Page 5) 

9:10 a.m. Welcome to Cheyenne – Southeast Regional Director Heather Tupper 

• Welcome remarks from Cheyenne LEADS CEO Betsey Hale 

9:30 a.m. 2022 Officers Nominating Committee Report 

• ACTION ITEM: Consideration of Nominating Committee recommendations 

9:40 a.m. CEO Report – Chief Executive Officer Josh Dorrell 

• Recognition of 2021 Co-Chair Kim DeVore 
• 2021 Annual Report 
• 2022 Direction 

10:25 a.m. Strategy Execution Standing Committee – Chairman Alex Klein 

• Strategy Report and Economic Update – Chief Strategy Officer Sarah Fitz-Gerald 

10:45 a.m. Morning Break – all participants will be muted 

10:55 a.m. Operations Standing Committee – Chairwoman Kathy Tomassi (Page 12) 

• Quarterly People and Performance Report – Human Resources Manager Chava Case 
• Q2FY2022 Financial Report – Accounting Manager Lyndsay Orr, CPA 

o ACTION ITEM: Consideration of acceptance of Q2 Financial Report 
• FY2021 Financial Audit Status Update – Chief Operating Officer Amy Grenfell 

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 1 of 68

https://www.google.com/maps/place/1400+E+College+Dr,+Cheyenne,+WY+82007/@41.1038489,-104.7832718,17z/data=!3m1!4b1!4m5!3m4!1s0x876f24c17e590ead:0xd0c1a4ab638bded4!8m2!3d41.1038489!4d-104.7810831
https://www.google.com/maps/place/1400+E+College+Dr,+Cheyenne,+WY+82007/@41.1038489,-104.7832718,17z/data=!3m1!4b1!4m5!3m4!1s0x876f24c17e590ead:0xd0c1a4ab638bded4!8m2!3d41.1038489!4d-104.7810831
https://zoom.us/test
https://zoom.us/j/295704768


• Public Comments Process - Chief Operating Officer Amy Grenfell 
• Legislative and FY23-24 Budget Update – Chief Operating Officer Amy Grenfell 

11:25 a.m. Services Standing Committee – Chairwoman Pam Thayer (Page 22) 

• Services Division Update – Services Director Brandon Marshall 

11:45 a.m.  Executive Session for discussion of Personnel Matters / CEO Review 

o ACTION ITEM: Consideration of Executive Session for discussion of personnel matters  
o Board members will retire to an alternate meeting room for the Executive 

Session and recess to lunch upon conclusion; please DISCONNECT from the 
webinar and check your email for instructions on how to access the Executive 
Session room.  

o WBC staff and members of the public are excused for the lunch recess at this 
time.  

o We will reconvene public session in this same Zoom Webinar room promptly 
at 1:00 p.m. unless otherwise specified. 

12:15 p.m. Lunch Break 

• Lunch will be provided on-site for WBC Board Members and Staff. 
• Members of the public are encouraged to sample a local restaurant. 
• All remote participants will be muted; please disable webcams during the break. 

1:00 p.m.  Re-convene Public Meeting 

• Roll call of Board Members 
• CEO Review Report – Kim DeVore, Committee Chair 

o ACTION ITEM: Consideration of CEO Review recommendations 

1:15 p.m. Field Operations Updates – Field Operations Team 

2:00 p.m. Investments Standing Committee – Chairman John Coyne III (Page 25) 

• Introduction and SSBCI Program Updates – Investments Director Bert Adam 
• Quarterly Challenge Loan Report – Business Finance Analyst Justin Mabie 

o ACTION ITEM: Consideration of acceptance of quarterly Challenge Loan report 
• Town of Alpine Project Update – Grants Projects Manager John Wendling 

o ACTION ITEM: Consideration of acceptance to move forward with contract 
• Review of BRC Budget and Allocation Plan, Presentation of Applications Received – 

Community Development Manager Noelle Reed, Grants Projects Manager John Wendling 

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 2 of 68



 

 

NOTE: All public comments received for the above applications are included with these materials 
beginning on Page 44 

• ACTION ITEM: Consideration of staff recommendations for each project 

4:00 p.m. Other Board Matters 

• SAVE THE DATE: Annual Staff/Board Policy Refresher & Board Orientation– Wednesday, 
March 23 (virtual - schedule TBA) 

• Next Meeting of SLIB: Thursday, April 7, 2022 
• Standing Committees will meet this quarter during the week of April 11 (invites via Google 

Calendar): 
o Investments Standing Committee – Tuesday, April 12 at 10:00 a.m. 
o Strategy Execution Standing Committee – Tuesday, April 12 at 2:00 p.m. 
o Operations Standing Committee – Wednesday, April 13 at 10:00 a.m. 
o Services Standing Committee – Friday, April 15 at 10:00 a.m. 

• Next Regular Meeting of this Board: Wednesday, May 11 by Zoom Webinar 

Project Type Request Staff 
Recommendation

Table Mtn Living Community Infrastructure Community Readiness 889,105$                      889,105$                     

Heritage Park Feasibility Study Planning Grant 18,750$                        18,750$                       
Economic Development Plan Planning Grant 50,000$                        50,000$                       

High-Tech Park Phase II Feasibility Study Planning Grant 20,000$                        20,000$                       

977,855$                      977,855$                     
32,272,531$                
31,294,676$                

Total Available BRC Funding 
Funds remaining if awarded

Total Requests

BRC Applications Received December 1, 2021

Applicant

Rawlins, City of
Sheridan Economic & Educational 
Development Authority (SEEDA)

Lander, City of

Newcastle, City of

Q7 Allocation
Priorities % of Allocation Q7 Allocation Available

High 45% 7,041,302$                        

Medium 54% 8,449,563$                        
Low 1% 156,473$                           

15,647,338$                      
Planning

BRC Project Types
Business Committed & Managed Data Ctr Cost 
Reduction
Community Development

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 3 of 68



to
I-80

1400 E. College Drive • Cheyenne, Wyoming 82007 
307.778.LCCC • lccc.wy.eduWEST ENTRANCE

EAST 
ENTRANCE

to 
South Greeley Hwy

East C
ollege D

riv
e

Athletic

Fields

Administration (AM)
Business Services
Human Resources
President’s Office

Andrikopoulos Business & 
Technology (BT)

Arena (Aren)

Arp (Arp)
Children’s Discovery Center

Auto Body (AB)
UW SBDC

Auto Tech (AT)

Boyd Agriculture (AG)

Career & Technical (CT) 
ACES

Center for Conferences & 
Institutes (CCI)

Boys & Girls Club

Central Plant North (CPN)

Clay Pathfinder (PF)
Admissions & Academic Advising
ANB Bank Leadership Center
Bookstore
Campus Safety
Career Services
Counseling & Campus Wellness
Disability Support Services
Exam Lab & Testing Center
Student Accounts
Student Hub 

Financial Aid / Student Records
UW Extension

College Community Ctr (CCC) 
Dining Room
Playhouse
Student Lounge

Crossroads (CR) 
GEAR UP
Student Computer Ctr/Support Desk
Student Engagement & Diversity

Education & Enrichment Ctr (EEC)

Fine Arts (FA) 
LCCC Foundation
Marketing & Communications

Flex Tech (FT)
WHP Academy

Ludden Library (LIB)

Plant Operations (PO) 

Prentice/Surbrugg 
Health Sciences (HS)

Recreation & Athletic 
Complex (RAC)

Residence Halls (RH)
Merrell Student Activity Lounge

Science Ctr (SC)
Dental Hygiene Clinic

Surbrugg/Prentice Aud (AUD)
Esther & John Clay Fine Art Gallery

Training Ctr (TC)
PRS MapC 10/21

B

C D

E
F

G
H

I
J

K

LMN

A

RACRAC HSHS

SCSC
FAFA

RHRH

AMAM

BTBT ATAT

CCICCI

EECEEC

TCTC

AGAG

ArenaArena

CPNCPN

LIBLIB CCCCCC

ArpArp

PFPF

CRCR

ABAB

POPO

CTCT

FTFT

AUDAUD

RHRH

Blue Arches

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 4 of 68



REGULAR MEETING of the WYOMING BUSINESS COUNCIL BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Thursday, December 9, 2021 | by Zoom Webinar 

BOARD PRESENT: Chuck Brown III, John Coyne III, Kim DeVore, Mike Easley, Alex Klein, Mark Law, Erin 
Moore, Pam Thayer, Kathy Tomassi (Mr. Arens, Ms. Johnson, and Mr. Kenyon excused) 

STAFF PRESENT: Bert Adam, Sue Akey, Warren Appel, Chava Case, Josh Dorrell, Kristin Fong, Amy 
Grenfell, Brandi Harlow, Kiley Ingersoll, Josh Keefe, Devin Kenney (AG Counsel), Julie Kozlowski, Wendy 
Lopez, Justin Mabie, Brandon Marshall, Katie O’Bryan, Lyndsay Orr, Marcio Paes-Barreto, Ben Peterson, 
Kim Porter, Amy Quick, Noelle Reed, Heather Tupper, John Wendling, Elaina Zempel 

CONVENE PUBLIC MEETING 

Board Co-chair Kim DeVore called the meeting to order at 9:03 a.m., followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance. Roll was called and quorum was established. 

• ACTION ITEM: Motion to approve minutes from the September 2021 regular meeting at
Casper by Ms. Tomassi, second by Ms. Thayer, and no discussion or corrections. Motion carried
unanimously.

Ms. DeVore called Board Members’ attention to the written reports provided by the Field Operations 
team in the board materials and thanked that team for the detailed writeups which keep Board 
Members informed about activities across the state. 

CEO AND STRATEGY REPORT 

CEO Josh Dorrell provided the Board with a report on the WBC’s response to emerging demands over 
the last few years and how the opportunities of ARPA and the Infrastructure bill present huge 
opportunities for Wyoming which will require a certain “re-tooling” of the work we’re doing to spread 
the benefit of our work across more communities. 

SERVICES STANDING COMMITTEE 

Committee Chairwoman Pam Thayer introduced Services Division Director Brandon Marshall for an 
update on Division projects. Marshall spoke to the involvement of the team with foundational projects, 
the engagement of Asia Pacific Trade Office in several recent trade shows, promotion of the STEP and 
Industrial Certification grants,  

Marshall also gave updates on Business Recruitment activities and the success Recruiting Manager 
Wendy Lopez is realizing from her efforts, a revisit to the community targeted industry studies and 
helping communities develop strategies around them, and additional planning and organizing work in 
communities and with the Broadband Advisory Council by Kim Porter. Main Street Manager Kayla Kler 
has been focused on focused on work with Main Street communities to expand involvement and success 
of community programs, and there is ongoing to work to better-integrate the Main Street Advisory 
Board with the work of the WBC Board. Entrepreneurial Services Manager Bert Adam’s work on the 
SSBCI application which may provide as much as $58.4m additional opportunities for business funding 

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 5 of 68



over the next nine years which aims to be self-sustaining and continues to see a lot of demand for the 
SBIR program.  

Marshall concluded with a review of the efforts around broadband, including the still-pending award of 
the NTIA grant which is being monitored by Kim Porter and expects an award period in early 2022, as 
well as the Connect Wyoming program which aims to have a slate of fundable projects. Tied closely to 
this is the mapping initiative which will help us determine the scope of need and actual coverage areas. 
Marshall thanked WBC team members Justin Mabie, Kim Porter, Elaina Zempel and Warren Appel for 
their support of the broadband initiatives over the last quarter. 

Ms. Thayer thanked Marshall for the detailed report and specifically welcomed Kayla Kler to her new 
role as the Main Street Program Manager. 

OPERATIONS STANDING COMMITTEE 

Committee Chairwoman Kathy Tomassi introduced Chief Operating Officer Amy Grenfell to discuss the 
activities of the Operations Committee and a preview of today’s agenda items. 

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORT and AUDIT UPDATE 

Accounting Manager Lyndsay Orr presented the first quarter financial reports for state fiscal year 2022 
ending September 30, 2021. Orr did point out the higher-than-expected budget utilization numbers 
result from the encumbrances for existing contracts, and clarified those numbers balance out over the 
course of the year and are to be expected. 

• ACTION ITEM: Motion to accept quarterly financial report by Mr. Law, second by Mr.
Brown, and no discussion. Motion carried unanimously.

Orr then gave an update on the status of the FY2021 Financial Audit and explained the delay in 
presenting this quarter as is customary is due to delays on information from third parties. Orr 
recommended holding a committee meeting once the report is available, then taking the acceptance 
matter to the next meeting of this Board. 

COO Amy Grenfell commented that the WBC team and our auditor have been performing as expected, 
but reiterated these delays are related to federal funding reporting delays. Grenfell further 
recommended the review and acceptance of the audit report be a standard item for the first meeting of 
each calendar year as a timeline which will be more realistic. 

QUARTERLY PERSONNEL REPORT 

Human Resources Manager Chava Case presented the quarterly personnel report, highlighting the 
addition of Angie Buchanan to the accounting team in October, the promotion of Kayla Kler to the Main 
Street Manager position, and ongoing recruitment efforts for the Investments Division Director position 
pending Julie Kozlowski’s retirement. Case also spoke to the agile performance management model and 
ongoing professional development efforts to continue growing our human capital. 

CEO Josh Dorrell commented on the huge loss that will be felt with Julie Kozlowski’s retirement and the 
vast amount of institutional knowledge and calm practicality she brings to the work of the WBC, and 
thanked Julie for her years of service. 

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 6 of 68



DeVore thanked Chava and Josh for their work cultivating the culture and performance and reiterated 
that it is a long-game process. 

Agency Services Manager Warren Appel then led the Board with a brief review of the Contracts and 
Public Relations policies which have been carefully reviewed and updated to reflect actual practice as 
well as pared down to contain the most useful information. These policies were reviewed and 
unanimously approved and adopted by the Operations Standing Committee at its November 5 meeting. 

INVESTMENTS STANDING COMMITTEE 

Committee Chair John Coyne III introduced the agenda, noting the Brownfield Revolving Loan Fund item 
currently scheduled to take place after the lunch break will now take place prior to the lunch break. 

AMENDMENTS TO ADMINISTRATIVE RULES FOR THE BRC PROGRAM 

Agency Services Manager Warren Appel presented the proposed amendments to the administrative 
rules for the BRC program which create a framework for the handling of public comments related to BRC 
projects. Appel noted this change is consistent with the newly developed Public Relations policy and 
seeks to streamline the comment process for members of the public, and clarified the specific 
mechanisms, timelines and processes for the deployment are as-yet not clear but are under 
development. 

• ACTION ITEM: Motion to approve amendments by Mr. Klein, second by Ms. Tomassi,
and no discussion. Motion carried unanimously.

QUARTERLY CHALLENGE LOAN REPORT 

Business Finance Analyst Justin Mabie presented the quarterly Challenge Loan report, including four 
loans which are past-due as of September 30, one of which is being recommended for charge-off at this 
meeting. The Loan Loss Reserve remains adequate, including a full reserve of the pending charge-off of 
the Weber Ag, LLC loan in the amount of $484,950.00. Staff recommends acceptance of this report. 

Mabie and Economic Development Finance Analyst Josh Keefe spoke to the Weber Ag charge-off item 
and work with the AG’s office to recover funds where possible. Keefe pointed out the total charge-offs 
to-date is just over $1m. 

• ACTION ITEM: Motion to accept quarterly Challenge Loan report by Mr. Brown, second
by Ms. Moore, and no discussion. Motion carried unanimously.

WEBER AG, LLC LOAN CHARGE-OFF MEMORANDUM 

Economic Development Finance Analyst Josh Keefe presented the memorandum related to the charge-
off of the Weber Ag, LLC loan, including the history of the loan and path which led to this charge-off 
request. Keefe indicates the specific circumstances related to this item may result in changes to the 
Challenge Loan program to prevent similar circumstances in the future. 

• ACTION ITEM: Motion to realize a principal loss of $484,950.00 in the loan to Weber Ag,
LLC and Damon Weber by Ms. Tomassi, second by Mr. Brown, and no discussion. Motion carried
unanimously.

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 7 of 68



TOWN OF ALPINE PRETREATMENT FACILITY MEMORANDUM 

Grants Projects Manager John Wendling presented a memorandum on the sludge pretreatment facility 
project awarded to the Town of Alpine and the history to-date. The Town requests an extension of the 
existing award for which a contract was never completed.  

Staff recommends a re-evaluation of the project and authority to compel Town to submit a new 
application containing updated information for consideration at a future meeting of this Board in the 
event the scope of the project is changed from its initial approval. 

• ACTION ITEM: Motion to allow staff and the Investments Committee to re-evaluate the
project and recommend further action by the Board by Ms. DeVore, second by Ms. Thayer, and
no discussion. Motion carried unanimously.

CITY OF CHEYENNE F.E. WARREN ENHANCED USE LEASE EXTENSION MEMORANDUM 

Wendling then presented the Board with a memorandum outlining a request from the City of Cheyenne 
for an extension to the EUL following the withdrawal of the initial developer. The extension would 
provide additional time for the City and the Air Force to secure a developer for the project, which is the 
final step in the release of the funds. Board members expressed consternation at extending the EUL 
without knowing the final developer inasmuch as the original developer’s experience with such projects 
figure into this Board’s initial decision to fund the project.  

Cheyenne Chamber of Commerce CEO Dale Steenbergen and Cheyenne Mayor Patrick Collins responded 
to the concerns and requested the Board’s support of staff recommendations. 

• ACTION ITEM: Motion to approve staff recommendations subject to review by staff and
Investments Committee that the project remains in scope by Mr. Law, second by Mr. Kenyon,
and no discussion. Motion carried unanimously.

CITY OF LANDER MAVEN HEADQUARTERS LOAN INCREASE REQUEST 

The City of Lander is requesting an additional $294,608 on the loan for the Maven Headquarters to 
cover significant increases in materials costs. The increase to the loan amount is necessary to complete 
the project. Staff has reviewed this request and the applicant’s most recent financials, and further 
recommends approval of the request. 

• ACTION ITEM: Motion to approve staff recommendations by Mr. Easley, second by Mr.
Klein, and no discussion. Motion carried unanimously with Ms. Thayer absent and excused.

SEEDA VACUTECH GRANT REPAYMENT MEMORANDUM 

SEEDA is requesting a 10-year repayment term for funds paid out for the now-canceled expansion of the 
Vacutech facility in the Sheridan Hi-Tech Park. This change results from uncertainties tied to the ongoing 
COVID-19 pandemic. Staff recommends approval of the repayment plan as submitted. 

• ACTION ITEM: Motion to approve staff recommendations by Ms. Tomassi, second by
Ms. DeVore, and no discussion. Motion carried unanimously.

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 8 of 68



BROWNFIELDS REVOLVING LOAN FUND REQUEST: ACME POWER PLANT 

Business Finance Analyst Justin Mabie was joined by Natural Resources Program Supervisor Cindi 
Martinez of the Wyoming Department of Environmental Quality to present the application for a cleanup 
of asbestos and other industrial contamination at the site of the former Acme Power Plant just north of 
Sheridan. Mabie also provided a history of other awards made under the program, noting this request 
for $500,000.00 is recommended by WBC and DEQ staff. Martinez added that additional EPA funding is 
pending to complete the cleanup of the site which is anticipated to be completed in 2025. 

Ms. Tomassi inquired whether there has been any specific discussion on reuse of the facility. Martinez 
responded there have been discussions which largely point to greenspace or similar recreational uses, 
but no conclusion has been reached. Martinez also noted the remediation must be completed before 
any reuse can be contemplated. 

Mr. Law commented as a local that the facility is something of a nuisance and a danger for people 
looking to recreate in the area and said this is a worthwhile project. 

Ms. Thayer inquired about other funding sources and how those relate. Martinez responded that other 
applications pertain largely to the building and its contents whereas this request would serve to abate 
contamination to the soils and grounds outside of the building. 

• ACTION ITEM: Motion to approve staff recommendations by Mr. Klein, second by Ms.
DeVore, and no discussion. Motion carried unanimously with Mr. Easley absent and excused.

BUSINESS READY COMMUNITY GRANT AND LOAN PROGRAM 

Community Development Manager Noelle Reed led the Board on a preview of the projects for 
consideration at this meeting as well as a review of the current BRC budget and allocation plan. 

CITY OF CHEYENNE PROJECT BISON 

Staff presented a Managed Data Center Cost Reduction request in the amount of $2,250,000 for Project 
Bison/Microsoft to expand its regional datacenter footprint in Wyoming. This project anticipates 
creating an additional 13 jobs at 160% of Laramie County Median Wage. Staff recommends approval of 
this request. 

Board members asked about the capacity of the electrical system to serve the data center needs, the 
amount of land purchased, and the potential for build-out. Ms. Moore commented on the impact of 
datacenters, how they provide high-quality/high-paying jobs and make large contributions to the local 
economy. 

The Board heard comment from Betsey Hale, CEO of Cheyenne LEADS who spoke in favor of the project 
and stated Black Hills Energy is currently building a substation adjacent to the location to specifically 
serve this datacenter. 

TOWN OF SHOSHONI BUSINESS PARK SEWER PROJECT 

Staff presented a $1,583,419 Community Readiness Grant application from the Town of Shoshoni which 
would enable the Town to install 9,300 linear feet of sewer line, further-developing 273 acres of land 

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 9 of 68



and extending the sewer infrastructure to the Wyoming Mushrooms farm. This project also has the 
potential to benefit a potential grocery store which is under consideration for the community. 

TOWN OF JACKSON COMMUNITY CONNECTOR PROJECT 

Staff presented a $52,926 Community Project Grant for the installation of 15 former Snow King Resort 
lift chairs in locations along North and South Cache Street from Town Square to Snow King Resort. The 
installation would be treated as a single public art installation and would include a mix of swinging and 
fixed chairs aimed to improve historic awareness and walkability in the core business district.  

Staff does not recommend funding for this project as it seems geared toward visitor experience 
enrichment experience and not economic development or diversification, and therefore does not 
advance BRC program goals. 

The Board heard comments in support of the project from Ana Olsen from the Jackson Hole Chamber of 
Commerce, Carrie Geraci from Jackson Hole Public Art, Brian Stanley of Snow King Resort, and Johnny 
Ziem from the Town of Jackson. 

TOWN OF SHOSHONI HOTEL FEASIBILITY STUDY 

 Staff presented a $25,000 Planning Grant application from the Town of Shoshoni to investigate the 
feasibility of a full-service hotel located within the community which sits at a major crossroads in 
Wyoming’s tourism corridor and which presently has no such amenities nearer than 30 miles away. Staff 
recommends full funding as requested. 

The Board heard comments from Shoshoni Mayor Joel Highsmith who indicated initial review indicates 
the west edge of town as being ideal for such a project and emphasized the value of this project for the 
community.  

• ACTION ITEM: Motion to approve staff recommendations for the City of Cheyenne
Project Bison application by Mr. Klein, second by Mr. Law, and no discussion. Motion carried
unanimously with Mr. Easley absent and excused.
• ACTION ITEM: Motion to approve staff recommendations for the Town of Shoshoni
Business Park Sewer Project by Ms. DeVore, second by Ms. Tomassi, and no discussion. Motion
carried unanimously with Mr. Easley absent and excused.
• ACTION ITEM: Motion to approve staff recommendations for the Town of Jackson
Community Connector Project by Ms. Tomassi, second by Ms. Moore, and discussion from Mr.
Klein, Mr. Law, and Ms. DeVore. Motion carried with Messrs. Brown, Klein and Law opposed,
and Mr. Easley absent and excused.
• ACTION ITEM: Motion to approve staff recommendations for the Town of Shoshoni
Hotel Feasibility Study by Ms. Thayer, second by Mr. Klein, and no discussion. Motion carried
unanimously with Mr. Easley absent and excused.

OTHER BOARD MATTERS and ADJOURNMENT 

Ms. DeVore extended her thanks to the board and staff for their work preparing for today’s meeting and 
acknowledged the difficulty in evaluating the projects and making targeted, strategic decisions in the 
face of very good projects. 

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 10 of 68



Ms. DeVore then appointed Erick Arens, Chuck Kenyon, and Cindy Johnson to be the Nominating 
Committee for 2022 Board Officers. 

Next meeting of SLIB is on Thursday, February 3, 2021, quarterly committee meetings are outlined in the 
board book. Formal notifications of next year’s meeting schedule will be confirmed in the coming weeks 
and invites sent via Google Calendar. 

There being no further business before this Board, Ms. DeVore adjourned the meeting at 2:29 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted 

Warren R. Appel, Agency Services Manager 

Kathy Tomassi, Secretary/Treasurer 

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 11 of 68



PEOPLE AND PERFORMANCE
WBC BOARD OF DIRECTORS UPDATE

February 2022
Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 

February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  
Page 12 of 68

http://wyobizrelief.org/


PEOPLE

PROMOTIONS
BERT ADAM, INVESTMENTS DIRECTOR

• JOINED WBC IN 2020 AS
ENTREPRENEURIAL SERVICES MANAGER

• Experience leading large teams to
deliver creative solutions

• Change leader and people developer

• Contributed to the design and build
of the system that delivered
business relief funds to Wyoming
businesses

RECRUITMENTS
AGENCY SERVICES MANAGER

BROADBAND MANAGER

COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP AND ENGAGEMENT
MANAGER

ENTREPRENEURIAL DEVELOPMENT MANAGER

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 13 of 68



PERFORMANCE

Strengths 
based 

development

Agile goal 
setting

Feedback

Coaching

Recognition

Rewards

AGILE PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT
• Strengths based development

Unique talents + performing at our best + expectations
• Agile goal setting

outcomes + challenging + growth
• Feedback

care personally + challenge directly
• Coaching

people centered + rapid learning

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 14 of 68

Presenter
Presentation Notes
We continue to learn more and practice agile performance management. I consider it an evolving theory and practice at the organization that doesn’t have formalized timelines and processes, but is rather being expressed through changing behaviors and beliefs.As I reflect on our growth through these components of agile performance management, the one that stands out to me the most as a differentiator of our culture is the coaching aspect. At this time, we’re trying to build peer coaching into our routines. The benefits to peer coaching is that they bring in the ideas of diversity and inclusion while building a community in a hybrid work environment, and deepen and broaden our skillsets. If you look at the experiences on our team and the different things each of us had done and learned in our lifetimes and share that in a one on one way across the organization, then you have a multiplier effect through those life experiences.



WBC
TEAM

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 15 of 68



WHAT’S NEXT?

Building a learning organization

Coaching

Thinking forward

Continuous leadership development

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 16 of 68

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Building a learning organization: essentially, a learning organization is one that encourages adaptive and generative learning. One that encourages employees to reach for bold, creative solutions and to work tightly with peers to solve problems together. In other words, an organization committed to deep, personal growth for something greater than the sum of its parts.Coaching: This is our first leap into building a learning organization. Creating a support system for employees to build their capabilities with one another and the safety of talking through growth in a socratic method where the employee creates their story – no one is solving anyone’s challenge.Thinking forward and leadership development: As we look to the future and what it will take for us as individuals to evolve into the triangle approach for statewide economic development, it’s critical to consider our existing patterns of behavior and reactions. And as that occurs, it’s incumbent upon us to reflect and consider how we approach our leadership in our important roles: are we exhibiting grace for those we impact? And in grace, I think about gratitude, resilience, aspirations, courage and empathy. As we continue to evolve and grow, we know that it won’t just be as simple as leveraging our intelligence and acquiring new knowledge, as it will be more about reaching inside to our purpose and where we can do more great work that benefits everyone.PAUSE FOR QUESTIONS



THANK YOU

Chava Case, HR Manager
chava.case@wyo.gov

307.287.8033

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 17 of 68

http://wyobizrelief.org/
mailto:Chava.case@wyo.gov


Optimum = 50%
BUDGET SUMMARY BUDGET EXPENDED ENCUMBERED BALANCE % Avail. Cash Balance YTD Receipts

Economic Diversification
   Investments $39,428,721 $644,865 $17,494,418 $21,289,438 46.01%
      General (BRC/CDBG) $25,000 $340 $0 $24,660 1.36%
      Economic Loan $10,000 $4,442 $0 $5,558 44.42%
      Business Ready Communities (includes MRG) $39,393,721 $640,083 $17,494,418 $21,259,220 46.03%
   Services $4,012,980 $1,110,602 $1,880,311 $1,022,067 74.53%
      General $2,766,292 $927,070 $1,653,850 $185,372 93.30%
      Broadband Administration (fund 004) $209,300 $4,986 $0 $204,314 2.38%
      Entrepreneurship $25,000 $936 $0 $24,064 3.74%
      Main Street $348,000 $42,349 $114,911 $190,740 45.19%
      Markets & Expansion $359,389 $43,871 $14,050 $301,468 16.12%
      Recruitment $242,500 $78,850 $95,000 $68,650 71.69%
      Rural Development $62,500 $12,540 $2,500 $47,460 24.06%
Wyoming Business Council
   Operations $5,180,404 $2,253,038 $103,097 $2,824,269 45.48%
       Accounting $41,000 $15,087 $21,000 $4,913 88.02%
       Agency Services $394,831 $113,722 $82,097 $199,012 49.60%
       Board $31,550 $7,727 $0 $23,823 24.49%
       Executive $14,250 $11,026 $0 $3,224 77.38%
       HR (Non-Payroll) $119,250 $31,058 $0 $88,192 26.04%
       HR (Payroll) $4,350,320 $1,946,039 $0 $2,404,281 44.73%
       IT $229,204 $128,379 $0 $100,825 56.01%
   Regional Directors $90,000 $20,355 $0 $69,645 22.62%
   Strategy $605,561 $241,836 $122,877 $240,848 60.23%
      General $105,000 $52,049 $0 $52,951 49.57%
      Communications $267,766 $88,217 $97,002 $82,547 69.17%
      Strategic Partnerships $232,795 $101,570 $25,875 $105,350 54.75%

TOTAL GENERAL FUNDS $49,317,665 $4,270,696 $19,600,703 $25,446,266 48.40%

Federal Funds
    Brownfield Revolving Loan Program $881,503 $121,352 $55,101 $705,050 20.02%
    CDBG Program $4,560,141 $391,321 $3,481,440 $687,380 84.93%
    Rural Development Block Grant $47,000 $26,800 $20,200 $0 100.00%
    State Trade and Export Program (STEP) $145,125 $62,900 $20,000 $62,225 57.12%

TOTAL FEDERAL FUNDS $5,633,769 $602,373 $3,576,741 $1,454,655 74.18%

Agency Funds
    Economic Loan Development (fund 039/089)* $26,043,325 $25,987 $74,413 $25,942,925 0.39% 7,489,769$  723,571$       
    Rural Rehabilitation (fund 499) $259,153 $36,667 $20,000 $202,486 21.87% 4,686,414$  27,450$         
    Wyoming Business Council (fund 085) $68,881 $11,460 $0 $57,421 16.64% 207,731$  3,368$           

TOTAL AGENCY FUNDS $26,371,359 $74,114 $94,413 $26,202,832 0.64%

TOTAL BUDGET $81,322,793 $4,947,183 $23,271,857 $53,103,753 34.70%

CARES Act COVID-19 Relief
    CARES ACT Agriculture Program $34,617,534 $34,617,534 $0 $0 100.00%
    CARES Act Business Relief Program $379,032,079 $379,032,079 $0 $0 100.00%
    CARES Act Connect Wyoming $48,588,908 $48,588,908 $0 $0 100.00%
    CARES Act Energy Rebound Program $28,704,241 $28,704,241 $0 $0 100.00%
    CARES Act Administration Funds $646,976 $641,290 $5,686 $0 100.00%

TOTAL CARES ACT $491,589,738 $491,584,052 $5,686 $0 100.00%
* $25 million reserved for Large Loan Fund

Loan Type Balance
Economic Disaster 6,721,436      
Bridge 1,497,725      
Amendment IV - 
Natural Gas Infrastructure 193,773         
WyoTech 4,900,000      
BRC 11,976,193    
Unallocated Allowance (75,933)          

25,213,194    

Wyoming Business Council
Quarter Ending December 31, 2021 (2021/2022 Biennium)

6%

2% 0%

39%

48%

5%

Budgeted Expenditures by Funding Source

  Personnel Expenses

  Support services

  Central data services

  Grants

  Non‐operating expenses (Loans)

  Professional services

  Personnel
Expenses

  Support
services

  Central data
services

  Grants

  Non‐
operating
expenses
(Loans)

  Professional
services

Budget Remaining $2,555,745 $574,147 $37,385 $13,360,895 $35,467,378 $1,108,204

Budget Used $1,946,229 $616,047 $24,557 $18,483,711 $3,815,589 $3,332,906

$1,946,229  $616,047 
$24,557 

$18,483,711 

$3,815,589 

$3,332,906 

$2,555,745  $574,147 
$37,385 

$13,360,895 

$35,467,378 

$1,108,204 

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Line Item Expenditure Summary

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 18 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  Page 19 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 20 of 68



Public comments process
Public comments must be submitted to: 
• wbc.public-comment@wyo.gov – OR-
• By Mail to:

Wyoming Business Council
Attn:  Public Comment
214 W. 15th Street
Cheyenne, WY  82002

• Written comments for Business Ready Communities (BRC) applications submitted
and under board consideration for funding recommendations shall be received by
the Council no less than 14 calendar days prior to the public meeting at which the
application is to be considered by the Board

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 21 of 68

mailto:wbc.public-comment@wyo.gov


WYOMING  
MAIN STREET

2021 REINVESTMENT NUMBERS

NET NEW 
BUSINESSES

NET NEW JOBS

53
168

132

$20.6M14,744
IMPROVEMENTS IN BUILDING AND 
INFRASTRUCTURE TOTALING  

IN PUBLIC AND PRIVATE 
INVESTMENTS

VOLUNTEER HOURS 
VALUING OVER

$420,800
Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors

February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  
Page 22 of 68



BLACKSTONE
POPULATION: 3,391

In the heart of Southside Virginia, 
small town simplicity never looked so 

appealing!  

Our community enjoys a culture 
that includes traditions of the 

historical, rural south. 

Blackstone’s charming 
Historic Business District 

features an array of historic 
buildings, quaint shops, 

unique restaurants, service 
providers, museums, 

and prominent nods to 
the locality’s identity 
as a proud military 

community. 

Each spring, Wyoming Main Street hosts a “Best Practices Workshop” in advance of the Main 
Street Now Conference. This is a 2-day workshop opportunity to tour and interact with Main 
Street communities and Main Street professionals on best practices and challenges learned in 
their work. 

This year, the Best Practices Workshop will take place in three communities near Richmond 
(as the conference host city): Blackstone, Farmville, and Hopewell. The workshop will take 
place May 13 and 14, 2022, bringing 55 Wyoming community leaders to these communities to 
connect. 

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 23 of 68



FARMVILLE
POPULATION: 8,117

If you’ve never been to 
Farmville, the name might 

give you the wrong idea. 
Think college town, furniture 

shopping, history and outdoor 
fun!

Whether you are looking for a 
great place to spend some time or 

a vibrant downtown to locate your 
business Farmville Downtown has so 

much to offer. 

As the anchor for an eight-county south 
central Virginia region of 125,000 people, 

the Farmville Downtown Main Street 
District is at the heart of whatever you 

want to do: shop, eat, meet friends, immerse 
yourself in art, or take care of business.

HOPEWELL
POPULATION: 22,456

The City of Hopewell has been called the 
“Wonder City” because of its resiliency 

and tendency to bounce back. Despite 
many past challenges, including the loss 

of the industry that initially built the 
City, and a fire that all but destroyed it 

in 1915, in 2016 Hopewell celebrated 
100 years of incorporation. Wonder 

City indeed!

With 13 years in the making and 
nearly 10 years as an accredited 

Main Street organization, the 
active individuals who make 

up the Hopewell Downtown 
Partnership have proven 

themselves to be as 
resilient and dynamic as 

the Downtown they care 
so deeply about. 

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 24 of 68



214 W. 15th Street 
Cheyenne, WY  82002 

Tel: (307) 777-2800 Fax: (307) 777-2838 
www.wyomingbusiness.org 

Memorandum 
To: Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
From: Justin Mabie – Business Finance Analyst  
Subject: Challenge Loan Reporting Requirements 
Date: February 23, 2023 

1. Past Due Report.  Challenge Loan Policy requires quarterly reporting of all loans 30 days
or more past due.

• There were three past due payments on December 31, 2021:
o Edward Lay (Goshen County Economic Disaster Loan – March 2020)

 A demand for payment letter was sent on July 30, 2021, and a
response has not yet been received. Josh Keefe and I attempted to
make contact during a site visit on November 16th however, we were
unable to speak to Mr. Lay. We posted a payment stub with his past
due information on his front door. I attempted to call the borrower
on January 19, 2022, to discuss his late payments, however, his
mailbox was full and was unable to accept messages. Attempts will
continue to be made to reach the borrower in the future.

 The amount past due is $29,746.98 (two annual payments plus a
$725.54 late charge); loan balance is $107,892.00.

o Ryan Riggs (Goshen County Economic Disaster Loan – March 2020)
 A demand for payment letter was sent on July 30, 2021, and a

response has not yet been received. Josh Keefe and I attempted to
make contact during a site visit on November 16th however, we were
unable to speak to Mr. Riggs. We posted a payment stub with his
past due information on his front door. I attempted to call the
borrower on January 19, 2022, to discuss his late payments,
however, his mailbox was not set up. Attempts will continue to be
made to reach the borrower in the future.

 The amount past due is $38,599.49 (two annual payments plus a
$941.45 late charge); loan balance is $140,000.00.

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 25 of 68

http://www.wyomingbusiness.org/


o Cody Easum (Wyoming Sugar Economic Disaster Loan – November
2017)
 A certified demand letter was mailed in April 2021 and again in July

2021, and a response has yet to be received. A physical visit was
performed on October 26, 2021, and the borrower was strongly
advised to make the past due payment before the end of the calendar
year; however, no payment was made. I tried calling the borrower
on January 19, 2022, but was only able to leave a voicemail.

 The amount past due is $21,479.65 (two annual payments plus a
$523.89 late charge); loan balance is $64,067.44.

2. Loan Loss Reserve Analysis.  Challenge Loan Policy requires a review of all loans that
are delinquent (over 30 days past due) and a specific reserve will be allocated if the review
warrants. There will be an additional unallocated reserve of one-half of one percent of the
total portfolio balance.

• The reserve is adequate with a balance of $1,607.023.  The allocation includes a
10% loan loss reserve for the Economic Disaster Loans originated, plus 0.5% of
the total loan portfolio.  The reserve does include a full allowance for Cody Easum
($64,067.44), Edward Lay ($107,892.00), and Ryan Riggs ($140,000.00).

• The resulting available fund balance in the Economic Development Fund is
$7,489,769.

3. Charge off balances.

• None to report at this time.

4. Other News.

• None to report at this time.

Staff Recommendation:   

• Staff recommends acceptance of this report.

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 26 of 68



INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 
TO: WYOMING BUSINESS COUNCIL BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FROM: WBC INVESTMENTS DIVISION 
SUBJECT: TOWN OF ALPINE PRETREATMENT & SLUDGE FACILITY CONTINUATION 
DATE: FEBRUARY 23, 2022 

The Town of Alpine requests WBC Board of Director approval to continue the Pretreatment and Sludge 
facility project. Currently, there is no grant agreement in place. 

PROJECT OVERVIEW 

The Town of Alpine was awarded “up to” $2,300,370 in BRC grant funding by SLIB two years ago on 
October 3, 2019. As presented, this project was anticipated to be matched with Economic Development 
Agency (EDA) funding of $1,184,003. If EDA funding was awarded the BRC grant amount would be 
lowered to $1,116,367; however, EDA funds were not awarded. 

The original project was to install a sludge handling facility at the town’s wastewater treatment plant to 
provide a solution for the reduction and disposal of residual solids produced primarily by Melvin 
Brewing from the production of IPA beers at their facility.  

Until recently, the town was paying for the waste to be transported to Paris, Idaho. Now the town is 
having the waste transported to Pinedale, WY. This is not a long-term solution for either community. 

TOWN OF ALPINE AND WBC CORRESPONDENCE 

• November 4, 2020 - Alpine Mayor, Kennis Lutz, notified WBC staff that EDA funding was denied
for a third and final time.

• November 17, 2020 – WBC Staff sent a letter acknowledging receipt of the letter and needed
more information to proceed. This included:

o How will the Town of Alpine address the need for additional match with EDA funding no
longer in place? The town was committed to 5% of the 10% required match.

o Explanation of why EDA funding was denied.

A reply was never received despite several attempts to reach out to the town. 

• October 4, 2021 – WBC Staff sent a notice of cancellation of grant funds, giving the Town of
Alpine 30 days (until 11/4/2021) to respond or funding would be withdrawn.

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 27 of 68



• October 29, 2021 – A response was received from the Town of Alpine with a cover letter,
updated site plans, and tentative schedule beginning October 31, 2021.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Due to the change in project design, communication difficulties, and changes in project funding and 
urgency, the Investments Division recommends the submission of a new application from the Town of 
Alpine including new cost estimates, plans, and funding structure for the WBC Board of Directors’ 
consideration at the March 2022 quarterly meeting. 

WBC Deliberations 12/9/21 

Board members asked if the town provided reasoning why EDA funding was not approved and if 
communication breakdowns were the main reason for delays. Board also asked if construction had 
begun and what changes have happened to cause this project to come back to the board.  

Board Co-Chair Kim DeVore moved to let investment staff assess the project and inform Investment 
Committee how to proceed, seconded by Pam Thayer. Motion carried unanimously.  

Investments Committee Deliberations 1/25/22 

Board members commented that they appreciated the community’s cooperation and providing all the 
information that was needed.  

Board member Alex Klein moved to allow the project to proceed, seconded by Jason Kintzler. Motion 
carried unanimously.  

The Project will go before the WBC board at the February 23 quarterly meeting for final approval before 
the grant agreement can be executed.  

WBC Staff is recommending the continuation of the project and will monitor the project closely. The 
town of Alpine will have six months from the date of the Agreement’s execution to begin construction or 
funding will be cancelled.  

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 28 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 29 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 30 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 31 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 32 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 33 of 68



CITY OF
LANDER

WYOMING BUSINESS COUNCIL
BUSINESS READY COMMUNITY GRANT & LOAN PROGRAM

CITY OF
LANDER

TABLE MOUNTAIN
LIVING

COMMUNITY
INFRASTRUCTURE

COMMUNITY READINESS
APPLICATION
$889,105 Grant Request
$98,790 Cash Match
Total Project Costs: $987,895 

About the Facility:

Funds from the BRC grant will be used to leverage a $13.1 million USDA
grant/loan application for the actual construction of the new healthcare facility. 

The Table Mountain Living Community facility will be owned by the City of
Lander, design-built by a private firm, and operated by a management company
through a separate public/private partnership.

PROJECT OVERVIEW
The City of Lander requests an $889,105
community readiness grant to develop a 3.94-
acre site which will house a future assisted
living and memory care facility.  

The proposed location is 1400 Bishop Randall
Drive, which is located between Sage West
Hospital and the Lander Golf Course. The site
is city-owned and requires water, sewer,
street upgrades, 3-phase power, fiber conduit,
and natural gas to be shovel-ready.

15:1
LEVERAGED IN FOLLOW-

ON CAPITAL
(APPROXIMATELY)

Infrastructure funded by this
project will support the creation
of the Table Mountain Living
Community which will house 24
assisted living beds and 14
memory care rooms. The facility is
expected to be ready for residents
in the fall of 2023 and is
anticipated to create 20 to 25 new
jobs.

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 34 of 68



Local health care providers
agree that the Table

Mountain Living
Community will offer the
full continuum of care the

community seeks.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
This project began five years ago when the need for an assisted living facility was
identified by community members. The city created an Assisted Living Task Force to
determine the viability of developing a new facility in Lander. 

During 2017-2019 the city, in conjunction with the Lander Housing Authority, underwent a
planning period and completed a Market Demand Study. This study showed a need for 24
additional assisted living beds by assessing healthcare within a 40 to 60-minute drive of
Lander. The report also showed a need for 12 memory care rooms, noting that current
memory care providers are over a two-hour drive from Lander.  

The Lander Housing Authority also vetted 22 private and public sites during this time to
determine the optimal location of a new facility. During this time, local healthcare
providers were offered a stakeholder share in constructing and/or operating the new
facility. While none of them ultimately agreed to be the operating entity, they all support
the new facility and agree that it will offer the full continuum of care the community is
seeking. 

In 2020, Lander City Council approved pursuing a city-owned healthcare facility to be
managed by the Housing Authority. To do this, the city expanded the duties of the
Housing Authority in accordance with the State Statute W.S. 15-10-116. The Lander Housing
Authority also revised its bylaws to include assisted living/memory care and appointed 2
new members with medical backgrounds.

project evaluation
JOB QUALITY

Not applicable for this application

COMPANY STRENGTH
Not applicable for this application

Furthermore, additional assisted living and memory
care options are needed in Lander as referenced in
the Market Demand Study completed. While there is
one assisted living provider currently in Lander, the
study still showed that the community is underserved
and needs an additional 24 beds.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT - STAFF ANALYSIS
The need for this project was well-established through community participation, market
demand and feasibility studies, and discussions with other healthcare providers. The
community has established there is a void in the community that this facility will fill. 

Community members have been very involved throughout this process. 28 local individuals
and businesses raised over $30,000 of private funding for the original Market Demand &
Feasibility Studies. There are also letters of support and articles from the local newspaper
included in board materials. 

Above and beyond what is required from an infrastructure project, this facility is projected
to create 20 to 25 new jobs.

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 35 of 68



Activate New Economic Sectors
Healthcare – enhances the local healthcare industry; helps existing knowledge
businesses expand 
Adds opportunity for both new employment and expanded education

Empower communities to sustainably develop their unique economies
Expands Local Healthcare Ecosystem

Invest in amenities that draw and retain knowledge, creative and advanced
manufacturing workforce

STATE CONSIDERATIONS
This project aligns with the State Strategic Plan in the following ways: 

STATE CONSIDERATIONS - STAFF ANALYSIS
Not only does this project activate a new economic sector for the State, but it will also
encourage further advancement of the healthcare ecosystem for the region.  

In 2018-2019, Fremont County was identified by both ENDOW and the Next Generation
Sector Partnership initiatives to have high potential to expand their local economy in the
healthcare industry. 

This project will leverage state funds with federal and local funds at a 15:1 ratio.

project evaluation

M
ap

 o
f 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 T
ab

le
 M

o
un

ta
in

 L
iv

in
g

 C
o

m
m

un
it

y

Page 36 of 68



SOURCES
BRC Grant
Cash Match
TOTAL ELIGIBLE PROJECT COSTS

BRC % of Total Project Costs
Local % of Total Project Costs

$889,105
$98,790

$987,895

90%
10%

USES

Architectural & Engineering
Fees
Project Inspection Fees

Site Work (curb & gutter,
asphalt, etc.)

3-Phase Power
Water Main Extensions
Fiberoptic Conduit
Natural Gas Extensions
Sewer Main Tie-Ins

Non-Construction Costs

Construction Costs

Infrastructure

Contingencies (15%)
TOTAL USES

$86,430

$73,177

$173,250

$18,000
$363,500
$100,000

$32,500
$33,000

$108,038
$987,895

Letter of intent for full funding of
actual facility construction from USDA
or other financing institution. 
In the event that the building and site
are leased or sold to a private entity,
a Revenue Recapture Agreement will
be executed with at least 25% of net
proceeds returning to the BRC
account. 

Project leverages approximately 15:1
in follow-on capital.
Need is well-established through
Market Demand and Feasibility
Studies. 
Community has worked with partners
to develop effective approaches to
economic and community
development. 
Coordinating with other healthcare
providers to align care. 
Allows community to invest in
amenities to draw and retain
knowledge, creative and advanced
manufacturing workforce.

STAFF
RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends funding, as requested,
contingent upon: 

The positive recommendation is based
on the following principles: 

PROJECT SOURCES &
USES

Project 
Infrastructure

Measure Quantity
Acres Developed
Water
Sewer
Road
Telecommunications
Natural Gas

3.94
2300 LF
300 LF
1700 LF
2000 LF
500 LF

city of lander - table mountain living community infrastructure
performance measures

Page 37 of 68



CITY OF
NEWCASTLE

WYOMING BUSINESS COUNCIL
BUSINESS READY COMMUNITY GRANT & LOAN PROGRAM

CITY OF
NEWCASTLE

HERITAGE
PARK

FEASIBILITY
STUDY

PLANNING GRANT APPLICATION

$18,750 Grant Request
$6,250 Cash Match
Total Project Costs: $25,000

The site is currently undeveloped and will be donated to the City by Pinnacle Bank if
the planning grant is approved. The site is valued at approximately $250,000. 

Needs Assessment: 
The needs for this project were identified by local citizens looking for a community
gathering space for various activities, including the Farmer’s Market, Veteran’s
Memorial, reunions, youth events, music and art events, etc.

The city created a committee that has been planning this project for almost three
years. During this time, they explored several locations and identified planning
needs based on traffic patterns, visibility, and community feedback. 

PROJECT OVERVIEW
The City of Newcastle requests an $18,750
Planning grant to determine the feasibility of a
public gathering space called “Heritage Park.”
Heritage Park will host activities such as the
local farmer’s market, community events, and
will be the home of a Veteran’s Memorial.

The proposed site is located at 1401
Washington Blvd, at the intersection of
Highways 16 and 85. The community envisions
this location as a welcoming stop for travelers
and will further attract visitors into the
downtown area.   

$250,000
LAND DONATION

(13:1 PRIVATE INVESTMENT
TO BRC FUNDS)

Existing infrastructure and
operational assessment 
Public Involvement 
Detailed Cost Analysis

Proposed Scope of Work: 

The planning process will consist
of three primary components: 

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 38 of 68



project evaluation

COMMUNITY
IMPLEMENTATION

The committee is dedicated, in
partnership with the City Council, to raise
funds needed for the project completion
through local sponsorships and other
grant opportunities. The City of
Newcastle has the funds to operate and
maintain the project and will provide
their public works staff to maintain the
property. 

The community has a history of
completing projects utilizing community
involvement and sponsorships, including
Stampede Street Historical Project,
Project Play It Safe at Dow Park,
downtown murals, railroad car planters,
Bill Kohlbrand Arboretum, bike paths,
and improvements at the Weston County
Fairgrounds. 

Specialty Crop Producers – in and
around Weston County 
City of Newcastle Recreation Board 
Weston County Recreation Board 
Weston County Fine Arts Council
Newcastle Farmer’s Market vendors 

POTENTIAL PARTNERS

Pinnacle Bank has committed to donating
the land for Heritage Park, which is a
significant contribution to the project
(13:1 private investment to BRC funds). 

Additionally, the Newcastle Veteran’s
Memorial Group has already started
fundraising for the home of their
memorial, and the University of Wyoming
Extension sees an opportunity for
promotion of wellness and nutrition with
a recreation area and Farmer’s Market.  

Other potential partners include: 

PROJECT SOURCES & USES

BRC Grant
Cash Match
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS

USES

Consulting Services
TOTAL USES

$25,000
$25,000

$18,750
$6,250

$25,000

SOURCES

BRC % of Total Project Costs
Local % of Total Project Costs

75%
25%

Project leverages 13:1 private capital to
BRC request.
Planning is foundational to economic
and community development. 
Empowers the community to
sustainably develop their own unique
economy. 
Allows community to work with
partners to develop effective
approaches to economic and
community development in rural
communities. 

STAFF
RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends funding as requested. 

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 39 of 68



CITY OF
RAWLINS

WYOMING BUSINESS COUNCIL
BUSINESS READY COMMUNITY GRANT & LOAN PROGRAM

CITY OF
RAWLINS
ECONOMIC

DEVELOPMENT
PLAN

PLANNING GRANT APPLICATION

$50,000 Grant Request
$16,667 Cash Match
Total Project Costs: $66,667

Needs Assessment: 
The last time the City of Rawlins went through an economic and community
development planning process was in 2012. However, they did complete a Strategic
Plan in 2021. This Plan identified five priorities, with one of them focusing on
economic development.

The community has a lot of potential but needs some direction. The city recently
created an economic development department to capitalize on the community’s
geographical advantage as the I-80 business route goes directly through downtown
Rawlins, creating an opportunity to recruit more tourism traffic.

Proposed Scope of Work: 
The proposed scope of work will include a needs assessment, the creation of a
citizen-driven advisory panel, and monthly meeting and social media updates. The
end product will be a roadmap/strategy for recruiting or expanding businesses,
attracting employees, diversifying the economy, attracting tourism dollars,
satisfying retail and entertainment needs locally, and providing opportunities that
keep youth in the community. 

The community anticipates the final report will provide a set of policies, procedures
and best practices to initiate an effective economic agenda.

PROJECT OVERVIEW

The City of Rawlins requests a $50,000
Planning grant to develop a five-year
economic plan for their community. This plan
will outline the economic vision, mission and
goals of the community, outline economic
strategic and specific actions to be taken,
align with the 2021 City of Rawlins Strategic
Plan, and help citizens, businesses, and local
partners understand and work toward the
economic priorities of the community. 

10
 YEAR OLD PLAN NEEDS
REFRESH TO SUPPORT
NEW ECON DEV TEAM

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 40 of 68



project evaluation
COMMUNITY IMPLEMENTATION
City leadership has expressed interest in developing
the economy of Rawlins. They recently created an
economic development department and hired a new
Economic Development Director to implement the
strategies identified in the proposed plan. 

The City Manager has municipal management
experience, the new Economic Development
Director has a strong financial and business owner
background, and the City Grant Writer has more
than twenty years of experience. Each of these
individuals will be integral to the completion and
implementation of the Economic Development Plan. 

Additionally, the City anticipates the planning
process itself will create capacity for
implementation by engaging community members
and conducting citizen surveys.  

Carbon County Economic
Development Corporation
Rawlins-Carbon County Chamber of
Commerce
Carbon County Visitors Council
Downtown Development Authority
Main Street
Town of Sinclair
Local economic and real estate
developers
Citizens at large

POTENTIAL PARTNERS

The City of Rawlins has partnerships
with the following entities and
individuals:

PROJECT SOURCES & USES

Planning is foundational to economic and community development. 
Empowers the community to sustainably develop their own unique economy. 
Allows community to work with partners to develop effective approaches to
economic and community development in rural communities. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends funding as requested. 

SOURCES
BRC Grant
Cash Match
TOTAL ELIGIBLE PROJECT
COSTS
BRC % of Total Project Costs
Local % of Total Project Costs

$50,000
$16,667

$66,667

75%
25%

USES

Consulting Services

TOTAL USES

$66,667

$66,667

Page 41 of 68



SEEDA WYOMING BUSINESS COUNCIL
BUSINESS READY COMMUNITY GRANT & LOAN PROGRAM

 SEEDA
HIGH-TECH

PARK PHASE II
FEASIBILITY

STUDY

PLANNING GRANT APPLICATION

$20,000 Grant Request
$6,500 Cash Match
Total Project Costs: $26,500

Create an inventory of opportunity sites (land and buildings) 
Pursue site for purchase and extension of infrastructure 

Needs Assessment: 
The initial Sheridan High-Tech Park was the realization of goals and opportunities
identified in the North Main Master Plan process and further developed with a site-
specific feasibility study. The proposed Phase II Feasibility Assessment would give the
community an opportunity to replicate the successes of the Sheridan High-Tech
Business Park and provide future project-ready sites for business recruitment and/or
expansion.

The planning needs for Phase II were also identified in a SEEDA Board strategic
planning process in 2020, where they identified two objectives:  

Furthermore, the development of another phase of the Sheridan High-Tech Park aligns
with several goals and objectives of the Wyoming Economic Development Strategy,
particularly the goal to “Activate New Economic Sectors”. 

The first phase of the Sheridan High-Tech Park was developed to aid existing
businesses to expand and to recruit advanced manufacturing investment to Sheridan.
All three of the businesses in the High-Tech Park are regional or national leaders in their
industries and have active research and development staff. One of the companies was
actively recruited to the state while the other two were business expansions.

PROJECT OVERVIEW
Sheridan Economic & Educational Development
Authority (SEEDA) requests a $20,000 Planning
grant to evaluate three to four potential sites for
a continuation of the High-Tech Park concept. 

The first phase of the Sheridan High-Tech Park
has been one of the community’s most
successful economic development efforts. The
43.5-acre park currently contains three
businesses that employ approximately 300
residents in light manufacturing and R&D
occupations. Occupants of the tech park include
Kennon, Weatherby and Vacutech.  

300
RESIDENTS EMPLOYED BY

3 BUSINESSES IN LIGHT
MANUFACTURING & R&D

(PHASE I)

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  Page 42 of 68



project evaluation
COMMUNITY
IMPLEMENTATION
SEEDA’s history of implementing projects
is well-established. As stated above, the
initial Sheridan High Tech Park emerged
from a Master Plan process and feasibility
study. They have also completed past
funding packages to develop projects.
SEEDA anticipates that if the feasibility
study shows the development of Phase II
should occur, they will complete a similar
funding package with multiple sources.  

City of Sheridan 
Sheridan County 
Sheridan College 
Sheridan County Chamber of Commerce 
Private Landowners 

POTENTIAL PARTNERS
SEEDA has already identified potential
partners, which may include

PROJECT SOURCES & USES
SOURCES
BRC Grant
Cash Match
TOTAL ELIGIBLE PROJECT
COSTS
BRC % of Total Project Costs
Local % of Total Project Costs

$20,000
$6,500

$26,500

75%
25%

USES
Consulting Services
TOTAL USES

$26,500
$26,500

Identifying strategic parcels of land.
Evaluation factors include current
owner's willingness to partner and/or
work collaboratively on project
development, proximity to existing
infrastructure, appropriate zoning, and
strategic location in relation to state
highways and I-90. 
Evaluating each site in terms of
developable land availability, potential
opportunities or obstacles to
development, environmental concerns,
rough costs to develop the site to
“project ready” status, etc. 
Selecting a preferred site. This will also
include preparing a conceptual plan and
engineering costs for initial
development. 
Identifying potential resources and
funding opportunities. 

PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK
The proposed scope of work will include 

Planning is foundational to economic and community development. 
Empowers the community to sustainably develop their own unique economy. 
Potential to help existing advanced manufacturing businesses expand. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends funding as requested. 

Page 43 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 44 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 45 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 46 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 47 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 48 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 49 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 50 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 51 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 52 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 53 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 54 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 55 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 56 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 57 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 58 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 59 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 60 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 61 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 62 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 63 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 64 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 65 of 68



Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 66 of 68



Easter Wyoming Recreation Board

January 20, 2022

Dear Grant Committee,

The Eastern Wyoming Recreation Board strongly supports the application of the Heritage Park Project in
Newcastle, Wyoming. We believe the park will provide a valuable benefit to our community.

We intend to partner with the Heritage Park Project and City of Newcastle with this letter of support.

We believe this project will benefit the community by increasing the amount of time visitors spend in
our community, promoting specialty crop producers in our area through the Farmer's Market, and
providing a family friendly location for people and organizations to gather outdoors.

Thank you for your consideration,

Jason Jenkins

Board Chair

Eastern Wyoming Recreation Board

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 67 of 68



WYOMING REFINING COMPANY 
10 STAMPEDE STREET 

NEWCASTLE, WY  82701 
(307) 363-0999 FAX (307) 363-1833

February 9, 2022 

Pam Gualtieri 
Mayor, City of Newcastle 

10 W Warwick 
Newcastle, Wyoming 82701 

Dear Mayor Gualtieri, 

Par Pacific, Wyoming Refining Company and Wyoming Pipeline Company are in full 
support of the proposed Heritage Park Project near the 4-way stop of US Highway 16 and 
US Highway 85 in Newcastle Wyoming. 

On August 28th, 2021, we held a charity golf tournament and chose the Newcastle 
Wyoming Veterans Memorial nonprofit to be the recipient of all proceeds generated from 
this event.  Total proceeds amounted to $20,000.    

The land donation by Pinnacle Bank and the proposed use of the location to include the 
Newcastle Wyoming Veterans Memorial is a much-needed improvement for Weston 
County and its residents.  We hope that your efforts to secure the needed funding as well 
as support from the Wyoming Business Council will be granted. 

Respectfully, 

Michael Farnsworth 
Vice President, Wyoming Refining Company 

Wyoming Business Council Board of Directors 
February 23, 2022 | Meeting Materials  

Page 68 of 68


	DRAFT February Agenda
	LCCC Map
	DRAFT December 2021 Minutes
	1_January_February 2022 People Report
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	WHAT’S NEXT?
	Slide Number 6

	2_FY22 Qtr 2 Financial Report
	3_WBCACFRLetter1.21.22
	4_Public Comments Reminder
	1_2021 Reinvestment
	2_2022 BPW Flyer
	1. Qtrly Challenge Loan Report 02.2022 - jm
	Subject: Challenge Loan Reporting Requirements

	2. Alpine Project Summary
	TO:
	WYOMING BUSINESS COUNCIL BOARD OF DIRECTORS

	FROM:
	WBC INVESTMENTS DIVISION

	SUBJECT:
	TOWN OF ALPINE PRETREATMENT & SLUDGE FACILITY CONTINUATION

	DATE:
	FEBRUARY 23, 2022


	3. Lander_TableMtnCommInfra_02-2022BRC
	4. Heritage Park Feasibility Study_02-2022BRC
	5. RawlinsEDP_02-2022BRC
	6. SEEDA_HighTechParkPhaseIIFeasibility_02-2022BRC
	7. Lander Letters of Support
	8. Lander Newsletter Articles, Opinions, etc
	9. Newcastle Letters of Support


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




